Leavenworth Preservation Commission
Wednesday, August 2, 2017 5:00 PM

Commission Chambers
100 N 5% Street
Leavenworth, Kansas

AGENDA

1. Call to order, determine a quorum

2. Approval of Minutes: June 7, 2017

3. New Business:

2017-16 LPC - 801 N BROADWAY STREET

A State Law review under the US Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for
Rehabilitation for the proposed exterior alteration of the property located at 801
North Broadway, commonly known as the North Broadway School. The property
was listed in the National Register of Historic Places in 2011. A Major Certificate of
Appropriateness is required for the proposed changes to the building.

4. Old Business:

418 CHEROKEE STREET — BARIS RESTAURANT LLC D/B/A LUIGI’'S RESTAURANT

The Leavenworth Preservation Commission heard this item at the January 21, 2015
and October 7, 2015 meetings. Since the last meeting, the owner has installed a
railing which does not match the appearance of what was shown on the approved
plans, and has applied for a building permit to install an awning which does not
match what was shown on the approved plans. Additionally, new signage, as shown
on the approved plans, has not been installed; signage moved from the previous
location of the restaurant is in place. Due to these factors, staff requested the
applicant discuss his plans with the Preservation Commission prior to issuance of a
building permit for the requested awning. The Preservation Commission considered
these changes at the June 7, 2017 meeting and requested that the owner provide
more detailed information.

5. Other Business/Correspondence:

FYI - Minor Certificates of Appropriateness (6)
o 1105 5™ Street —2.29” x 4’ wall sign

6. Adjournment




CITY OF LEAVENWORTH PRESERVATION COMMISSION
COMMISSION CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
100 N 5% Street, Leavenworth, Kansas 66048
Wednesday, June 7, 2017 5:00 PM

The Leavenworth Preservation Commission met Wednesday, June 7, 2017. Chairman Ken Bower called the meeting to
order. Other commissioners present were: John Karrasch, Rik Jackson, Stephen Hansen, Debi Denney, and Sherry
Hanson. Mr. Otto was absent. Also present for the meeting were City Planner Julie Hurley and Administrative Assistant
Michelle Baragary.

Chairman Bower noted a quorum was present and called for a motion to accept the minutes from May 3, 2017 as
presented. Mr. Jackson moved to accept the minutes, seconded by Ms. Denney and approved by a vote of 7-0.

OLD BUSINESS:
1. 418 CHEROKEE STREET — BARIS RESTAURANT LLC D/B/A LUIGI’S RESTAURANT
Review plans.
Chairman Bower called for the staff report.

City Planner Julie Hurley stated the Leavenworth Preservation Commission heard this item at the January 21, 2015 and
approved a Major Certificate of Appropriateness, and again at the October 7, 2015 meeting and approved changes from
the previously approved plan. The approved revised plans included installation of new signage, a steel and glass awning,
and an aluminum railing.

Since the October 7, 2015 meeting, the owner has installed a railing which does not match the appearance of what was
shown on approved plans, and has applied for a building permit to install an awning which does not match what was
shown on approved plans. Additionally, new signage, as shown on the approved plans, has not been installed; signage
moved from the previous location of the restaurant is in place. Due to these factors, staff requested that the applicant
discuss his plans with the Preservation Commission prior to issuance of a building permit for the requested awning.

Chairman Bower opened the public hearing.

Andi, representing Baris Restaurant, addressed the board. He stated the plans for the awning are exactly the same as
what was previously presented to the commission with the exception of support poles because he plans to install a 50’
awning. The awning will be stabilized on the fence and the wall of the building. Stated the engineer said the building
cannot support the awning due to the condition of the building. Andi stated his insurance company suggested he
change the design of the fence to prevent a possible lawsuit if a child got stuck in between the bars on the fence.

Andi stated the contractor did not include the curved glass to Luigi’s restaurant entrance because the entrance recedes
into the building; however, the curved glass will still be installed above the bakery.

Mr. Bower asked if there will be exterior lighting. Andi responded there will be exterior lighting on the walls under the
awning. Mr. Bower asked for pictures of what the lighting will look like. Andi did not have pictures but stated the
lighting will go with the design of the building. Mr. Bower was not satisfied with that answer. He stated this has been
an ongoing project and the changes thus far to the building are not what have approved. He would like to see pictures
of what is currently being proposed.

Mr. Bower asked where the supports for the awning will be located. Andi responded there will be three supports
surrounding each window, as shown on sheet A1. Mr. Bower asked if the supports attach to the ground or the wall of

the building. Andi stated there is a metal beam on top of the building. Mr. Bower asked for clarification that the

Leavenworth Preservation Commission Minutes June 7, 2017



supports will not dropped down in front of the window. Andi responded the supports will not go in front of the
windows.

Ms. Hurley stated it is difficult for staff to tell where the supports will be according to the plans submitted by the
applicant. She further pointed out on the documents submitted for the building permit, there was nothing showing the
arched glass over the bakery.

Ms. Hanson stated the curved glass seems a bit modern if the applicant is trying to preserve the historic look of the
building. Andi responded it will not be curved glass because glass is not safe. He provided the commissioners a sample
of the type of material to be used for the curved arch, which is a polycarbonate material.

Ms. Hanson asked for clarification on the type of look Andi is going for as she is having difficulty getting a clear vision on
what he would like to do. Andi stated he is going for a modern Italian cuisine look.

Ms. Hanson asked if the delay with the awning is due to the contractor requiring the support beams. Andi stated the
issue was finding a company that could manufacture a 50’ awning, which is for outside seating. He stated the engineer
said the front of the building is a cinder wall with veneer brick. Andi further stated the awning will be stabilized by the
beams on the front of the building and by three posts outside.

Commissioner’s asked for verification that there will in fact be posts going from the awning to the ground. Andi
responded yes. Mr. Bower asked for the location of the posts. Ms. Hurley stated there appears to be a post on each
end of the building and one post in the middle. Mr. Bower asked if the posts will block the window. Andi responded the
posts will not block the window. Ms. Hurley showed the commissioners a picture of the building, which shows where
the three posts will be located. The post in the middle will go in front of one of the windows. Ms. Hurley stated the
drawings the applicant submitted do not show the relationship to the building. Andi stated one of the posts will go in
front of the window and it will be a 3” post. Ms. Hurley stated the drawings indicated 4” posts. Andi agreed they will be
4" black posts. Ms. Hurley further stated the drawings submitted for the awning permit do not show the curved arch
over the bakery entrance. Andi stated there will be a curved arch over the bakery entrance. Ms. Hurley again stated the
drawings submitted to the city does not show a curved arch over the bakery but does show one over the restaurant;
however, Andi stated earlier there will not be a curved arch over the restaurant.

Ms. Hanson asked why a curved arch is not going above the restaurant to balance everything. Andi stated because there
is six foot entrance to the restaurant so an arched awning is not needed there to protect people from the weather.
Furthermore, it would cost an additional $8,000 to add a curved arch to the restaurant awning. Ms. Hanson stated she
does not believe the look will be appealing with only one curved arch. Andi stated the look would be fine because the
awning covering the seating outside will all be in the same design. He also stated he wants customers to recognize the
bakery is a separate business from the restaurant.

Mr. Karrasch stated from an aesthetics standpoint, having the arch over the bakery will cause the bakery to stand out
more than the restaurant. Mr. Karrasch asked why the applicant would want the bakery to be more predominate than
the restaurant. Andi responded he wants both to be predominating. He further stated his only worry is putting up a
beam over the restaurant entrance, which would be required in order to put up the curved arch.

Ms. Hanson suggested doing something high upper on the building and not use the curved glass altogether. Andi stated
they are putting the beam on the bakery side high upper on the wall to support the 4’ curved awning and this will match
the height of the restaurant entrance.

Mr. Karrasch asked if the engineer can come up with a creative solution on how to get around the H beam on the
restaurant entrance. Andi stated the engineer said the only way to do this is to have a metal frame around the
restaurant entrance which would be attached to the building.

Ms. Hanson asked if the current sign on the building, which is the sign that was on the old building, will be removed.
Andi stated it will be in the near future. Ms. Hanson suggested putting up a new sign in its place and having a sign of the

Leavenworth Preservation Commission Minutes June 7, 2017



same design over the bakery. Andi stated the current sign is on anchors but it lightweight. Andi stated the anchors
caused structural problems with the wall which he has to address.

Mr. Bower asked if the new signage will look like the signage which was originally presented and approved. Andi stated
it will be similar. Mr. Bower asked what is meant by similar.

Ms. Hanson asked if there was a proof the commissioners could look at and asked if there will be two separate signs;
one for the restaurant and one for the bakery. Andi responded there will be two separate signs.

Mr. Bower again asked if the signage will look like the submitted plans. Andi responded they will not.

Mr. Hansen stated it is difficult to visualize what the final design will look like. He asked if it’s possible to submit a new
design plan so the commissioners can see what the whole project will look like.

Mr. Bower asked if the applicant, in a short period of time, could present to the city a plan that would show what
everything will look like, to include both signs, the lighting, the awning, the arches, and the posts.

Mr. Bower asked the commissioners if they have any issue with the design of the fence that was installed. No one
objected to the design. However, Mr. Karrasch commented there was a missed opportunity in the fact that this project
has been piecemealed all along. On the fence, one of the center railings is larger than the end so the presumption is
that this is where the post will go for the awning. It’s unfortunate the railing was not designed in relationship with the
awning because four posts could have been used and spaced between the windows evenly, rather than having three
posts and having the middle post in front of a window.

Andi stated he change the post placement and put them evenly between the windows versus in front of one of the
windows. Mr. Karrasch stated this would affect the railing design. Andi stated it would not because the posts are just to
stabilize the awning. Mr. Karrasch explained the posts holding the awning are load bearing posts and go into the
ground. Andi stated the engineer and contracted also suggested installing four posts evenly between the windows but
Andi thought it would make the front of the building look too busy. He did state he would change it to four posts if that
is what the commissioners would like. The commissioners agreed it would look nicer with four posts if that can be done.

Mr. Karrasch proposed the item be tabled until the engineers and architects are available.

Mr. Bower agrees this should be tabled. It makes it impossible for the commissioners to do their jobs when the entire
project has been piecemealed together. The commissioners need to see a complete set of plans.

Andi stated the plans presented are exactly what they are going to do. Mr. Bower asked where the lights are on the
plans and the accurate design of the signage.

Andi asked who needs to attend the next meeting. Mr. Karrasch stated the architect and engineer both need to attend
the next meeting.

Mr. Bower stated he would accept the plans if the city engineer approved them. Ms. Hurley stated the drawings
submitted to the city do not show an awning over the bakery. Therefore, as far as the city is concerned, there is no
awning being installed above the bakery door. Andi stated the price includes an awning over the bakery. Ms. Hurley

stated if the intent is to put an awning over the bakery door, then this must be visible on the drawings.

Ms. Hanson asked what color the awning will be. Andi stated the awning will be the polycarbonate material, dark gray
in color.

Mr. Jackson suggested tabling the issue for additional information.

Leavenworth Preservation Commission Minutes June 7, 2017



With no further comments, Chairman Bower closed the public hearing and called for a motion. Mr. Jackson moved to
table the Major Certificate of Appropriateness until a drawing can be presented to answer questions the commissioners
have about the awning, signage, posts, arches, and lighting. Seconded by Ms. Hanson and passed by a unanimous vote
6-0.

Mr. Karrasch stated there is frustration from the applicant’s side with the governing body because he has some great
ideas and a time commitment and there is also some frustration on the commissioner’s side because they are not being
included in the changes and decisions, which is a critical point when doing this type of work in a historical district. Mr.
Karrasch feels the board has been more than accommodating working with the applicant and making modifications to
the guidelines. Mr. Karrasch encourages the applicant to include the board members in the discussions.

Andi stated his frustration has been with the contractors, not with the commissioners. He’s spent two years searching
for a company to manufacture his 50’ awning and finally found a company out of Bonner Springs, KS.

Mr. Bower asked if the bakery is going to be sold. Andi responded the bakery will not be sold. It will be a full scale
bakery but will be a completely separate business with a separate business license than Luigi’s.

Ms. Hanson asked if the color of the building for the bakery and for the restaurant will be the same. Andi stated the
color of each building will be different to distinguish between the two separate businesses.

NEW BUSINESS:

None

OTHER BUSINESS/CORRESPONDENCE
Chairman Brower noted there were six Minor Certificates of Appropriateness.

With no further questions or comments, Chairman Bower called for a motion to adjourn. Mr. Karrasch moved to
adjourn; seconded by Mr. Hansen and passed by a unanimous vote 6-0.

Meeting was adjourned at 5:46 pm.

JH:mb

Leavenworth Preservation Commission Minutes June 7, 2017



LEAVENWORTH PRESERVATION COMMISSION

State Law Review — North Broadway School
80\ N, B¢ OOAL\JQ\\

August 2, 2017
PREPARED BY: APPROVED BY:

o

Julie Hurley, W Paub Kramer, Cl’w.Ma\mg}

OWNER & APPLICANT:

Exact Broadway, LLC

SUBJECT:

A State Law review under the US Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation for the
proposed exterior alteration of the property located 801 North Broadway, commonly known as the
North Broadway School. The property was listed in the National Register of Historic Places in 2011, A
Major Certificate of Appropriateness is required for the proposed changes to the building.

-~

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The subject property is the former North Broadway School, lying in a residential neighborhood
approximately one mile northwest of downtown Leavenworth. The building is a two-story, U-
shaped structure built in 1923. The concrete structure has tapestry brick cladding with cast stone
ornamentation and a flat roof. Pointed-arch cast stone door surrounds at the front entries;
diamond and criss-cross patterned brickwork in the parapets of the front and rear elevations and
between window bays on the north and south elevations; and smooth cast stone beltcourses and
window surrounds communicate the Tudor Revival styling. The massing, form, materials and
functional features are illustrative of schools built during that particular era in Kansas. The North
Broadway School has experienced minimal alterations to this point, and most historic features
remain intact.

The property currently sits vacant. The applicant is proposing to modify the interior of the structure
for conversion to apartment units. A similar conversion was undertaken at the Ben Day School
previously by the same applicant/owner. The applicant intends to make no significant changes to
the exterior of the building which would change the character of the structure. New windows will
be installed along with a new roof, and sidewalks and curbs will be repaired. The interior of the
building will be converted to a total of 27 one bedroom apartments. Existing parking will be
retained in the rear of the building, providing for 18 surface parking spaces and 13 new garage
parking spaces, with one ADA accessible space. A community grilling area will be provided on the
south side of the building.

The property is currently zoned R1-6, High Densijty Single Family Residential. The applicant has
submitted a rezoning request to R-MF, Multiple Family Residential, to allow for the conversion of
the building to apartment. The Planning Commission is scheduled to consider the rezoning request
at their regularly scheduled meeting on August 7™

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




REQUIRED REVIEWS:

1.

A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that requires minimal
change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment.

The structure is being repurposed as a multi-family residence with no change to the defining
characteristics of the building. The building was listed on the National Register of Historic Places
due to the exterior architecture of the building, which will remain unchanged with the proposed
use.

The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic
materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided.

No removal of historic materials or features is proposed. Materials are being proposed to reflect
the original appearance of the building.

Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes that
create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or
architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken.

No changes are being proposed that would attempt to create a false sense of historical
development.

Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic significance in
their own right shall be retained and preserved.
There are no prior changes with known historic significance to the building.

Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that
characterize a historic property shall be preserved.
No existing historic features, finishes or construction techniques will be altered.

Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of
deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old
in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement
of missing features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence.

The proposed changes do not involve replacement of any historic features. The exterior of the
building remains in good condition, with little to no deterioration.

Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials
shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using
the gentlest means possible.

No chemical or physical treatments are proposed.

Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and preserved. If
such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken.
No known significant archeological resources exist for preservation.

New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy historic
materials that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and
shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the
historic integrity of the property and its environment.

The proposed changes do not destroy any historic materials that characterize the property.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner
that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its
environment would be unimpaired.

The proposed parking garage structures to the rear of the building will not be integral to the
main structure and could therefore be removed in the future without detriment to the building
or site.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The staff recommends APPROVAL of this request based on the analysis and findings included in this
report.

ACTION/OPTIONS:
e Approval, based upon a point by point review of Preservation Commission findings as stated.
¢ Disapproval, based upon a point by point review of Preservation Commission findings as stated.
(applicant may appeal to the City Commission)
Motion, to Table item until the next meeting for the purpose of further study.
e Motion, to forward to the SHPO for review.

ATTACHMENTS:

e Application and related materials
¢ Minutes of July 20, 2017 Development Review Committee

e 2011 National Register of Historic Places nomination

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




6262017 2:43:18 PM

BEZONING REQUEST

116 parel o MMF
e aparments.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

oy

Boch 103 i DAY AND MACAULAYS SUBCRISION of Tt iy of
Lamvrrts, siva BLOCK 108 1 MAZALLAT § FIRST ACCITION

v

e wos st

Conrty, Kaneas.

A1-RESIDENTIAL UNITS

Hamo [ Aea | Comt

| —T

ARLSE0D

o0 101 inE —_——

®

LANSCAPRIG s

LANGSCAPE AREA 3

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS =]

coumTY 20

owanm 2 sesaten

REGUIRED ZONNG STE INFORMATION

ZONE DESTRICT (XS TING) ara LAOSCAPOND AREA [CROSS ARER) 176720

20nE DHTRICT PROPOSED) P BURLDING HEKRHT, STORIES 2 vares

TONE LOT SCE QRIS ANEA]  TATAW BULDRG HERDHT. FEET Hteet

ARy LsE RESDENTIAL REGLIRED PARKG 3T rpmcen

ACCE BSORY UAELS) LEASI OFFICE STAMGARD PARING, PROVDED A e

GROTS FLOOR AREA Ao ACTESHNLE PARKPES. PROVIOED wacn
BASEMENT FLOOR 2w OTAL PARKDG SPACES ey
GROUMD FLOOR. e
EECCHD FLOOR 12407 & BICYCLE PARNING SPACES PROVIDED.

— 1 | SCALE 1"= 20007
RS a0

MLLTHEAMELY RESEENTIAL (RSP}

SINOLE FAMILY RESICENCES (R1-5)

WORTH STH STREET

s

TR

TN

LT

T R R T

A

CAXDTA STREET

SINCLE FAMLY RESICENCES (114

BRICK w/ CONCRETE STRUCTURE
BO1 N BROADWAY
(1.8 acres / 79,928 SF)
o

o e e T

(816) 785-2265
WAWW EXAGTARCHITECTS.COM

EXACT ARCHITECTS |
KANSAS CITY, MI!S‘OIJ_R.I‘“

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
North 801
801 NORTH BROADWAY STREET
LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS 66048

EXACT BROADWAY, LLC

¥ i
H JUNE 13,2017

CALEB BULAND

ARCHITECTURAL SITE
PLAN

AS-01

© COPYRIGHT EXACT ARGHITECTS, LLC 9%




£262017 24320 PM

Omzmxb__. EXISTING PLAN NOTES:

WOOD MILLWORK, VHERE EXISTING, SHALL BE
REMOVED ANO SHALL B REVSED FOR PATGHMO,

& AL EXSTING PLANTER SLRPACES T0 REMAM SAALL BE
PROTECTED DURIG CONSTRLCTION, TYPICAL

B FIELD VERFIED.

B ALLMISC HSTORC FASRI SCHEDLLED TG BE

RO OTHER MOme S TOAR: NI CNERBMG O

Y VALVES,
ETC NoT REGUREDF0R THE NEVYIORX. N THE

DEMOLITION PLAN LEGEND
NOTE GRAFIACS ARE STANDARD, LING.

———1 EXISTING WALL TO REMAIN
ezzzzrzzza EXISTING WAL TO BE CEMOUSHED.

= e= EXSTING DOORS TO REWAN,

A,
= == EXISTING DOORS TO BE DEVOUSHED.

— AX - EXISTING BUILDING AREA

t
1
|
i
i
i

KANSAS CITY, MISSOUR!
(81€) 785-228%
WWW EXACTARCHITECTS COM

ERQGI RO RS

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
North 801
801 NORTH BROADWAY STREET
LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS 66048

EXISTING GROUND
FLOOR PLAN

AX-01




S2/201T RPN

GENERAL EXISTING PLAN NOTES
LoD

REMGVAL OF ITEMS WITHOUT PRICR
glgﬂgl THE CONTRACTORS
FLLL RESPONSIBRITY FOR ANY RECUIRED WORK

Rgotanxkpumneﬂuos ATCHMG,

5 ALL EXISTING PLASTER SURFACES T0 REMAN SHALL 08
PROTECTED DURING CONSTRUCTION, TYPICAL.

& ALLCIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE APPROTIMATE ANO SHALL
BE FIELO VERIFED.

7. WHERE FOSSILE AL ORIGINAL HISTORIC FLOGRING,
VWAL AND CEILING FISHES SHALL REMAR INTACT.

L EXISTING HSTORC TRM AND MOLTING SHALL BE KEFT

"7
EYSTEMS (UN.O.\ FIRE ALARM EYSTEMS PANELS, EXIT

l..wzin_...«.ﬁ, THE CRIGINAL SOURCE.
n an:ﬂi..!rl.!!&:nnnmw.!xzn ALVES,

]
ADEGUATE AND GRGANZED ROUTING.

15 KEY MOTES WITH ™0 ARROWS INOICATE A NGTE FOR
THE ENTIRE ROOM, SEVERITY AND EXTENTS WLL VAR,
PRE-SIO FIELD WALK REQUIRED.

DEMOLITION PLAN LEGEND
HOTE GRAFHICS ARE STANDARD, UNG

—— | RS TING VAL TD REMARG

23=zs=as ENITING VAL TO BE DEMCUSHITL

ﬂw v s "

EXACT ARCHITECTS
KANSAS GITY, MISSOUR!
{816) T85-2265
WWW.EXACTARCHITECTS COM

North 801
801 NORTH BRCADWAY STREET
LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS 66048

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

EXI3TING SECOND
FLOOR PLAN

AX-02

© COPYRIGHT EXACT ARCHITECTS LG 209



A2672017 243031 PM

GENERAL NEW PLAN NOTES:

i
3
H
I
¥
|
H

RS
LOCATIONS. NOTIY ARCIHTECT OF ANY AREAS OR VORX.
ED oM T ™ T

£ WHERE WOOD BASEBGARDS AND TRIM ARE MISSRG O

(818) 785-2265
WAWAW EXACTARCHITECTS.COM

KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
1

EXACT ARCHITECTS

fasiNoTEs.

4
X RN SEAL ALL GONCAETE T REMAN EXPOSED,
WCLUCHNG BUT NOT LIMITED TO FLOORS, CCLLMNS AN

RGPS BSAND UMD $1L08 SHALL BE 18 B
EXTEND PROM FLEO 10 UTRLCTURE ABOVE En.a

NEW PLAN LEGEND
MOTE GRAPHICS ARE STANGARD, UNC,
EXISTING VAL TO REMAIN.

—
[——" MEWWALL TO BE CONSTRUCTED.
.||r._1”. -kné.n‘ﬁo.s-u..ng

HEWDOOR T BE INSTALLED.

801 NORTH BROADWAY STREET

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS 66048

[ A1-BUILDING AREA

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
North 801

Al - PUBLIC SPACE
Hama I Area

EastmenT

2 T T
_GROUNG HooR

1Y PAE I I

[ — TiEisF

A1 - RESIDENTIAL UNITS
Name | Area [ Count

BASEMENT

B S I—

1_GAGLD NCOR

L) [ wuw | 7w
SECOND FLOOA

(A HH T )

(G1CS s

01_GROUND FLOOR
wtre

GROUND FLOGR PLAN

A1-01

© COPYRIGHT EXACT ARCMITEGIS LG 2018




WO 3TN EASLBOWY LWIE IHDNAKD O

c0-LY

NYd HOOT4 ONOD3S

85099 SYSNY) ‘HLEOMNIAYI
133418 AVAAOYOUE HLYON Lo8
108 UHON
NOILONYLSNOD HO4 LON

“EHDO";S\I‘N "ALID SYSNYHY
S103L1IHOYY 1ovX3

WO SO LHIUVIIVIE MMM
5972584 (918)

Fism
¥0O0T4 aNO23S 20 @

MOTI T4T ALBTAAGD

T T s

SLINN WILN3QIS3H - LY

P 7]
ey Fvas Al
oot e
=5 I r’
p— |
o T waen

30VdS 2178Nd - IV

wary [ [

Y3YY ONIOTINS - LY

TATIVAEN 36 04 KOOG BN

VAMNULING TACL YIAMIN

W O SW000 CHLSI = =
_
[ —]

MG 01 The CHLTIG
TNTI CHVONYLS THY S8IVED AN

ANIOTTNVId M3N

ATUVONED CILVENL 36 TVWS ONY
v

ALTHLNG
NIYAEH OL CIIVHOI TAAL SOLEH DMLSIG T
o

LOnIMIANCD 01 40N I 4L VORI Low

TuPA LATIXD TV
TIV SAN0AYT NOOMLYY VY NIOLD CHVONYLS.
YOI 135S Y NIND L CIY R O WY

NIV

5 DMLLSEN) O OAIOTS TVNOIOV IONDNA
ALED ONY 53009 THYOI4Y LA
ARINOTTY M TLID Y
Y 3 BOVDUAAY L0 DNENIVS DRLVORCYT
‘0O OF SIXECH LI A3 104 1N INI NS0 341

“S3LON NVId M3N TVH3NID

d

v

Wd ZVArZ L1088



B2672017T 24312 PM

BOEY LD R LICT O

102V
LINN NOONO3E
1IN - NYid OF0HVING

®

ariezn

NY1d HOOd a3e-t

—1
é 1
§ 5{
_

34901 AOOY 15300

1l

[11)

Fi

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION )
EXACT ARCHITECTS |
North 801 e o
(816) 785-2265
801 NORTH BROADWAY STREET WWW EXACTARCHITECTS COM

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS 66048 i




TI0E_L2UIOUY OHVVIERITYD INGRALOD O

LO-SV
SNOLLVAS T3
0350d0Yd

o
ONILSIX3 - (AMVNIHd) NOILYAIT3 1SV3 | v

QNV ONLLSIX3

FILr )
ONILSIXT - (AYVANODIS) NOLLYAITI 153M I 8

™ L10z-52-9

o
==

TR

[l

ER

0|
nnl
ST

CRAN
- VAN o8 SO
— 01 SONWWAC JOME LIVE3
— oo Y VAR
— Buom
sINaWN20Q pou- -
NOLLONYLSNOD ONILSIX3 - (AYVANOD3S) NOLLVATTI HLMON I a
25
r-g a 00K
Tk
myam
LY
5320
xog - ) m-.ula -( ) m-mld
33 2 QIS0dOYd - (A§VIIEd) NOLLVATTS 1SV3 0350d0Yd - (ASVANOO3S) NOILVATTE LSTM
gé 2 —STEREUEAIIES ﬁmﬁ% ._:w%..-;::“ .-1'3.?‘3:3
r W e B TN SRS T | et
538 SRR S A SRR == nu|lo
3 - E - o L i B w* : 1| E A=
[ | : i ‘ n : IR
= [EE — == — | B — T ==
U g | o] - of % - R [s1] [ (3]
Bu2 900 1 ol B A5 WTD - - i 0 . - E -
> [T
i ia X
§i2
2215 > e |
25 ‘ 3 0O Q350d0¥d - (AYVANODI3S) NOILVAT I HLNOS |9 G3S0d0Yd - (AYVANODIS) NOILVAZTI HLNON H
HHERR ==
g £ 1 i vt iy
DERAE i |s o 0 lel] B L] B Ak K :
‘ 1 = 111 ﬂ 1 - : ‘u =
¢ . 0 418 - i Rl e I " B
© i Ll - “. ‘r 1 S I =i .- . - - o
F = — - :

"EO\IPOUDS 4040000 VLN IOsUMOST\SMmIeysY (30xF\Rogdas\ D

10 389 sfom woavenseT

SYOOTTIITINOLIOL BAP SNOLYAIT) = T00KIS AVAQYOS



NOTICE:

QUAKER DOES NOT SUPPLY ANY
FASTENERS, SHIMS, BACKER ROD, OR
SEALANTS. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

VERIFY INSTALLATION
VERIFY WALL DETAILS

ALL PANNING TO BE SEALED IN THE FIELD BY OTHERS

&P
FELD
))
" | @H
e
EXTERIOR
o[
I
©)
OTF—
O]
* BLOCKING AND INTERIOR FRUSH
s Vi PROPOSED MULLION
AEtD oY oners N < V4
SEAUNT |
(®
s m”_-.
RN E
& PROPOSED S.D.L.

PROPOSED HEAD, MEETING RAIL & SILL

NORTH BROADWAY SCHOOL

TPl e

CUT DETAILS




PROPOSED JAMB & MULLION

gggn‘\g./

©

MULLION

SHIM AS NEECED
FASTENER

PROPOSED JAMB & MULLION

gggag.:a/

SHIM AS NEEDED!
FASTENER:

®

MULLION

SHIM AS NEEDED
FASTENER

VERIFY INSTALLATION
VERIFY WALL DETALS

ALL PANNING TO BE SEALED IN THE FIELD BY OTHERS

NORTH BROADWAY SCHOOL

TProloct Famo:

CUT DETAILS




Development Review Committee Meeting
Thursday, July 20, 2017

Committee members present: City Manager Paul Kramer, Assistant City Manager Taylour Tedder, City Planner
Julie Hurley, City Clerk Carla Williamson, Public Works Director Mike McDonald, Public Works Deputy Director
Mike Hooper, Chief Inspector Hal Burdette, Health/Safety Officer Shawn Kell and Administrative Assistant
Michelle Baragary

AGENDA ITEM(S):

1. 2017-15 REZ and 2017-16 LPC - 801 N Broadway - Conversion of school to apartments
e Attendees: Caleb Buland, Jon Klocke and Phil
e Converting the Broadway School into 27 loft units
> 1 BR with 8x10 guest room
e Parking will be retained as is
> Will seal coat and stripe
> 8.6’ x 18’ stalls

¢ Nothing being done to the exterior of the building. Will have new windows, new roof, will fix the
sidewalks and curbs (curbs will be ADA accessible)

e Would like to install a limited number of garages
> LPC will want to know what the garages will look like
e Will set new transformer but will use existing utilities when possible
e Approx. 10-12 month construction cycle starting this fall
e Wants to use a Tyco valve on the sprinkler system

¢  Will mount LED lights on the building for the parking lot. Light about 75’

OTHER:

None

Meeting adjourned at 1:52 pm

Development Review Committee June 22, 2017



NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

United States Department of the Interior National Register Listed
National Park Service Qctober 6, 2011

National Register of Historic Places
Registration Form

This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for individual properties and districts. See instructions in National Register Bulletin, How
to Complete the National Register of Historic Places Registration Form. If any item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for
"not applicable.”" For functions, architectural classification, materials, and areas of significance, enter only categories and subcategories from the
instructions. Place additional certification comments, entries, and narrative items on continuation sheets if needed (NPS Form 10-900a).

1. Name of Property

historic name  North Broadway School

other names/site number  KHRI #103-484

2. Location
street & number 801 North Broadway Street N/A | not for publication
o N
city ortown Leavenworth A vicinity
state Kansas code KS  county Leavenworth code 103 zipcode 66048
3. State/Federal Agency Certification
As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, ,‘
| hereby certify that this _X__nomination ____ request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards 5

for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional
requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

In my opinion, the property _X meets does not meet the National Register Criteria. | recommend that this property
be considered significant at the following level(s) of significance:

___national ___ statewide X local
SEE FILE -
Signature of certifying official/Title Date

Kansas State Historical Society
State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government

In my opinion, the property __ meets ___ does not meet the National Register criteria.

Signature of commenting official Date

Title State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government

4. National Park Service Certification

| hereby certify that this property is:

___entered in the National Register ___determined eligible for the National Register

___determined not eligible for the National Register ___removed from the National Register

___other (explain:)

|
f Signature of the Keeper Date of Action




United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-800 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
(Check as many boxes as apply.) (Check only one box.) (Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing  Noncontributing

X | private X | building(s) 1 buildings
public - Local district district
public - State site site
public - Federal structure structure

object object
1 Total
Name of related multiple property listing Number of contributing resources previously
(Enter “NA” if property is not part of a multiple property listing) listed in the National Register
Historic Public Schools of Kansas 0

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.) (Enter categories from instructions.)
EDUCATION/School VACANT/NOT IN USE
7. Description
Architectural Classification Materials
(Enter categories from instructions.) (Enter categories from instructions.)
LATE 19™ AND EARLY 20™ CENTURY
REVIVAL/Tudor Revival foundation: STONE
walls: BRICK

roof: ASPHALT

other:




United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-300 OMB No. 1024-06018 {Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

Narrative Description

(Describe the historic and current physical appearance of the property. Explain contributing and noncontributing
resources if necessary. Begin with a summary paragraph that briefly describes the general characteristics of the
property, such as its location, setting, size, and significant features.)

Summary Paragraph

The North Broadway School at 801 N. Broadway Street, Leavenworth, Leavenworth County, Kansas, is in a residential
neighborhood approximately one mile northwest of the downtown commercial center. The property is also three blocks
south of the entrance to Fort Leavenworth and seven blocks southeast of the Fort Leavenworth federal penitentiary. The
two-story, U-shaped building was built in 1923. The concrete structure has tapestry brick cladding with cast stone
ornament and a flat roof. The foundation has a quarry-faced limestone veneer. Pointed-arch cast stone door surrounds
at the front entries; diamond and criss-cross patterned brickwork in the parapets of the front and rear elevations and
between window bays on the north and south elevations; and smooth cast stone beltcourses and window surrounds
communicate the Tudor Revival styling of the North Broadway School. The massing, form, materials, and functional
features clearly illustrate the modern elementary school version of the City Graded School property subtype described in
Section F of the Multiple Property Documentation Form “Historic Public Schools of Kansas.” The North Broadway School
has experienced minimal alterations. The most notable has been the replacement of historic windows and exterior doors,
although the historic openings are intact. These changes do not diminish one’s understanding the building as a public
school from the era of its construction. It retains integrity of location, setting, design, materials, workmanship, feeling, and
association.

Narrative Description

SETTING

The nominated property occupies the entire block bounded by North Broadway Street on the east, North 8" Street on the
west, Dakota Street on the north, and Kiowa Street on the south, with the primary elevation of the school spanning the
block facing North Broadway. One- and two-story single-family dwellings fill the surrounding blocks. The modest late-
nineteenth and early-twentieth century residences formed the neighborhood for North Broadway School. The exception is
a historic three-story residence that occupies the block south of the school. It was constructed as the William Small
Memorial Home for Old Ladies in 1904." It is now apartments.

The grade rises steeply on the east, north, and south sides of the block, from the public sidewalk to the elevated school
lot. A grassy lawn dotted with mature trees and evergreens surrounds the front and side elevations. An asphalt parking
lot occupies the west half of the lot behind the school. The parking lot is accessed via a curved driveway from the
northwest corner of the lot off Dakota Street. Concrete walkways and stairs connect entrances on the front elevation to
the public sidewalks at the northeast and southeast corners of the school. A public sidewalk also runs the length of the
block along Dakota Street.

EXTERIOR

The main block of the North Broadway school has a long primary facade that faces east toward North Broadway Street;
two short perpendicular wings extend west from the main block, creating a wide and shallow courtyard on the rear (west)
elevation. The front (east) and rear (west) elevations have nine bays and the north and south elevations have seven
bays. A regular pattern of window openings defines the bays. Some window openings on the north, south, and west
elevations have single windows. The bays on the west elevation of the projecting wings are blank with some detail but no
fenestration.

The second and eighth bays of the symmetrical front (east) fagade project slightly, giving the building a castle-like feel that
reflects its Tudor Revival styling. The primary entrances fill the first story of these projecting bays. Other details that
convey the building's style include pointed-arch, cast stone door surrounds at the front entries; diamond and criss-cross
patterned brickwork in the parapets of the front and rear elevations and between window bays on the north and south
elevations; and smooth cast stone beltcourses and window surrounds. The name “North Broadway School” is cast into

! Date Nimz, National Register of Historic Places Multiple Property Documentation Form for The Designs of Architects William Pratt Feth and Myron
Kauffman Feth in Leavenworth, Kansas, ca. 1895-1942, 2007, 13.



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

panels above each of the front entries. The parapets in the projecting bays are pierced with cast block ornamentation.
Limestone trim enframes the brick under each window and intermittently enframes the first story windows. Within the
limestone frame under the first floor windows is panel of stacked header courses that projects slightly. Diamond patterns
created from buff brick ornament the spandrels between the first and second story windows. Blank cast stone panels set
flush with the brick walls enhance the north and south end bays on the front (east) and rear (west) elevations. Historic
cast stone through wall scuppers pierce the parapet walls on each elevation. These have been abandoned and now non-
historic metal scupper heads and downspouts on the east, north, and south elevations drain water from the roof.

Non-historic aluminum-framed windows fill the historic window openings. The one-over-one hung sashes are topped by
large transoms filled with opaque panels. Historic drawings indicate that the original configuration featured four-over-four
paired windows and six-over-six single windows.

Non-historic aluminum-framed glazed doors fill the entrances on the front and rear elevations. Aluminum panels fill the
transoms above the rear doors. Stucco fills the transom area above the front doors. Historic drawings indicate that each
leaf of the paired doors originally had six-lights and a multi-light transom topped each opening (see additional
documentation).

A short flight of concrete stairs rises from the sidewalk to the front doors. Cheek walls flanking the stairs have quarry-
faced limestone block bases topped with large cast stone railings. The rear entrances are at grade level.

The flat roof is hidden by parapets on each elevation and is not visible from the ground. However, sloped roof surfaces
are visible above the rear entry vestibules. These surfaces have flat-seamed metal roofing.

INTERIOR

The interior of the North Broadway School retains its original configuration of corridors and functional s?aces, as well as
many of its simple historic finishes. The U-shaped double-loaded corridors organize both the 1 and 2™ floors.
Classrooms line the exterior (south, east, and north) sides of the corridors. The gymnasium occupies the center of the
building, toward the rear within the “U.”

There are two rear (west) entrances into each wing from the parking lot and two front (east) entrances into each wing. All
of the entrance vestibules have brick-clad walls and an intermediate doorway consisting of paired multi-light varnished
wood doors with multi-light sidelights and transom.

Within the projecting front towers, two stair halls rise from the front entrances to the second floor. The stairs have
concrete treads and risers. A solid painted plaster wall topped with a thick wood cap separates the stair runs.

Throughout the building the plaster walls and ceilings are painted. Some of the plaster ceilings on the 2™ floor have been
removed due to water damage. Plywood now covers these ceilings. All of the ceilings retain their original height. The
corridor walls have simple woed chair rail and picture rail moldings. A high blond brick wainscot clads the gymnasium
walls. The floors throughout the school are concrete. Composition tile covers floors in some classrooms and the
gymnasium. Similar tile has been removed from other classrooms. Two classrooms are carpeted. Where concrete is
exposed (corridors and some classrooms) it is polished and smooth. The corridors and most classrooms have a concrete
base that is integral with the concrete floor.

Interior doorways have varnished wood jambs and multi-light doors. Closets within the classrooms have solid two-panel
wood doors. Windows retain the historic wood mullion dividing the windows and the wood sill. All other window elements
were replaced when the aluminum windows were installed. The window openings are uncased with plaster jambs
returning directly to the window frames. Two first floor classrooms, the northeast and southwest (historically the manual
training room and domestic arts/science room, respectively), have wood bases. A simple wood picture rail molding lines
the top of the walls. Metal electrical conduit is surface-mounted to the walls and ceilings in the corridors and classrooms.

Rectangular classrooms line the exterior perimeter of the double-loaded corridor on both stories. The spacious
classrooms have high ceilings and large window bays that line the perimeter wall. The end walls have built-in varnished
wood cabinetry and closets. The cabinets have multi-light paired doors. Closets have multiple solid wood doors that pivot
in unison on a single center point. The classroom sides of the closet doors have chalk boards. Historic chalk boards in



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-800 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

varnished wood frames line the walls of the classrooms. In the former kindergarten classroom (southwest classroom on
the first floor) a brick fireplace graces the east wall. Separate girl's and boy's toilets are situated at the west end of the
former kindergarten classroom.

Two sets of paired doors access to the gymnasium from the main north-south corridor. A raised stage with a rectilinear
proscenium fills the north wall of the gymnasium. Three large windows pierce the west wall. Three sets of three-part
multi-light windows pierce the top of the east wall. These single-hung sashes rise up into the wall cavity and allow for
observation from the second floor corridor. Non-historic composition tile covers the concrete gym floor. The shallow
stage has wood floors and is accessed via stairs on the east and west sides. Blond brick clads the gym walls to a height
just above the doorways. Two doorways in the south wall lead to the kitchen (historically a locker room). A historic
concrete stair descends to the kitchen.

The boys’ and girls’ lavatories are located in the southwest and northwest corners of the first floor. The bathrooms do not
retain any historic fixtures or partitions.

Administrative offices are found at the center of the main block on both floors. These long, narrow spaces contain built-in
casework and single-user bathrooms. The first floor office has a multi-ight door surrounded by multi-light sidelights and
transom. Additional office space was created by converting a former storage room at the west end of the northeast
classroom (historically the “Manual Training Room") on the first floor. On the second floor a counselor's office was
created from an original locker room.

The boiler room is in the northwest corner of the basement. Metal stairs with open risers lead down to the concrete floor.
The basement walls are solid concrete with the exception of the west wall at the stairs, which is exposed brick.

INTEGRITY

The North Broadway School retains integrity of location, setting, design, feeling, and association. The replacement of
windows and doors has partially compromised integrity of materials and workmanship. However, according to the
registration requirements set forth in Section F of the Multiple Property Documentation Form (MPDF) “Historic Public
Schools of Kansas,” these alterations do not automatically render the property ineligible for register listing. More
importantly, the North Broadway School retains its historic masonry openings and historic interior configuration and
finishes. The building clearly communicates its historic function as a public elementary school and reflects the attributes of
the City Graded School property subtype described in Section F of the MPDF. The North Broadway School was
constructed to educate children in an established residential neighborhood of the city of Leavenworth (unlike earlier
county schools), and it had space devoted to specific functions, such as kindergarten, manual training, and science.
These elements are character-defining features of City Schools.



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-300 OMB No. 1024-6018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for National Register listing.)

I: A Property is associated with events that have made a
X significant contribution to the broad patterns of our
history.

l: B Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

l: C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics

X of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses high
artistic values, or represents a significant

and distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

D D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information
important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark "x" in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:

A Owned by a religious institution or used for religious
purposes.

B removed from its original location.

C abirthplace or grave.

D acemetery.

E areconstructed building, object, or structure.

F acommemorative property.

G less than 50 years old or achieving significance
within the past 50 years.

Period of Significance (justification)

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions.)

ARCHITECTURE

EDUCATION

Period of Significance
1923-1961

Significant Dates
1923

Significant Person
(Complete only if Criterion B is marked above.)

N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder
Smith, Charles A. (Architect)

Gordon Walker Construction Company (Builder)

The period of significance begins with the construction of the school in 1923 and extends to the 50-year cut-off in 1961.

Criteria Considerations (explanation, if necessary)
N/A



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-800 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

Statement of Significance Summary Paragraph (Provide a summary paragraph that includes level of significance and
applicable criteria.)

The North Broadway School at 801 North Broadway Street, Leavenworth, Leavenworth County, Kansas, is locally
significant under National Register Criterion A for the area of EDUCATION and under Criterion C for the area of
ARCHITECTURE. As defined by the Multiple Property Documentation Form (MPDF) “Historic Public Schools of Kansas,”
the North Broadway School possesses the distinct characteristics of a City School, specifically the City Graded School
sub-type. A City School is a public school constructed for a city with a population over 2,000. Like the City Graded School
property type, North Broadway School provides separate classroom facilities for each grade within the same building. As
the concept of building separate high schools and junior high schools developed, the City Graded School evolved into the
modern elementary school, housing only students in kindergarten through fifth or sixth grade. The North Broadway School
and its associated property illustrate the evolution of this class of educational facilities. Constructed in 1923, the
nominated school exemplifies an early twentieth-century, post World War | elementary school. It is a two-story masonry
structure with several customized interior spaces, including a kindergarten room, manual training room, domestic
arts/science room, and gymnasium/auditorium. The location of the North Broadway School at the heart of a residential
area, near the center of the city, also expresses an essential characteristic of a City School.

The North Broadway School meets all of the registration requirements presented in the MPDF for its property type. It was
constructed as a public school prior to 1955. It remains in its original location, within the residential neighborhood in which
it was constructed. The building also retains its massing, exterior form, original primary building materials, pattern of
window and door openings, original ornamentation and detailing, and interior corridor and classroom configuration. Nearly
all of the historic interior finishes remain intact. The building functioned as an elementary school through the 2010
academic year when the school district vacated and sold the building.

City school design followed accepted architectural trends. Revival styles popular during the early twentieth century were
commonly used for school design. The school's significance to the community was conveyed by its formal, symmetrical
masonry form. Charles A. Smith, a prominent architect and prolific designer of schools, designed the North Broadway
School in the stately Tudor Revival style in 1922,

Narrative Statement of Significance (Provide at least one paragraph for each area of significance.)

The North Broadway School is an excellent example of a City Graded School, an elementary school property sub-type.
According to the MPDF, early City Graded Schools in Kansas housed all grades from first through high school in one
building with multiple classrooms. After high school instruction was removed to its own building, City Graded Schools
included only first through eighth grades. The Progressive Era initiated additional changes to the curriculum and
organization of primary education. There was an increased demand for specialized spaces, not just at the high school
level, but for the lower grades as well, including designated spaces for art, music, kindergarten, and physical activity.
North Broadway School also had specialized classrooms for manual training, domestic arts and science, and physical
education. Further separation of grades into junior high and middle schools increased during the Progressive Era,
resulting in the development of the modern elementary school. An elementary school educated kindergarteners through
fith or sixth graders, with each grade in a separate classroom, and incorporated many of the specialized spaces
encouraged during the Progressive Era.? North Broadway School was an elementary school serving kindergarten through
sixth grade. A special classroom for the kindergarten had its own restroom and a fireplace.

Prior to the establishment of a public education system in Leavenworth several private schools provided education for the
city's juvenile population. According to one account, approximately twenty private schools operated in Leavenworth
between 1855 and 1898.% The first school in Leavenworth was a private school established in 1855 by Reverend J.B.
McAfee. Evidently, his political views and anti-slavery sentiments clashed with the opinions of many Leavenworth

¢ Brenda Spencer, National Register of Historic Places Multiple Property Documentation Form for Historic Public Schools of Kansas, 2005, F 31.
% J.H. Johnston, ill, Leavenworth: Beginning to Bicentennial (Leavenworth, KS: J.H. Johnston Ill), 1978, 104.



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-800 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

residents, and he was forced to resign in 1857." The same fate befell the school's next headmaster, Professor N.Z.
Strong, and the school closed.®

The Leavenworth Board of Education was established in 1864. It immediately began planning the city’s first public school
building. In 1867 the Morns School opened at Fifth and Dakota Streets. The four-story school accommodated S00
students in grades 1-12.° High school students attended classes on the upper floors. School enroliment flourished and
by 1872 a separate high school building was constructed at Seventh and Oak Streets.” In 1304 a second high school
building was built at Fourth and Walnut Streets. Leavenworth s public school building stock consisted of about a dozen
schools for lower grades and the large high school in 1906.

The Kansas State Normal School conducted a survey of Leavenworth public schools in 1915. At the time, there were
eleven schools. These included: one high school; three large schools serving elementary and mrddle school students;
five small elementary schools; and two schools that served the city’s African-American students.” The survey found that
three-quarters of the elementary school students attended schools that were at least 25 years old (some 50 years old).
These facllmes were outdated in terms of room arrangements, construction techniques, lighting, heating, hallways, and
playgrounds.'® The survey aiso found that the city's elementary population had remained steady over the past twenty
years and concluded that there would not be significant population growth in the future. Surveyors recommended that the
district would not need to build more elementary schools, but should replace the existing buildings with newer, updated
facilities within the next few years. The report recommended that the district hire a qualified architect to design the new
modern school facilities."

In 1921 plannlng was underway to construct a junior high, two large grade schools, and an eight room school in
Leavenworth.'? Followmg the recommendation that the Board consult an expert school archrtect for remodeling and
future school expansions, architect Charles A. Smith was hired to design all four buildings. '* Charles Smith was indeed
an expert at school design. He had served as the architect for the Kansas City, Missouri School District since 1898, and
had designed nearly 40 new schools and additions to existing buildings by 1920. A Leavenworth Times newspaper article
from 1922 identifies Smlth as the “school board architect,” suggesting that the Leavenworth School District hired Smith to
be their architect as well.

The three proposed grade schools were North Broadway School (Broadway & Kiowa Streets) Thlrd Avenue School
(Fourth Avenue and Marshall Street), and Cleveland Park School (Thirteenth and Vilas Streets).”® Smith desuqned the
schools in 1922.'® The Leavenworth Times reported that Cleveland Park was ready to open by January 1, 1923."" North
Broadway and Third Avenue Schools opened in September of 1923. Smith subsequently desugned a new school to
replace Sumner Elementary School, one of Leavenworth’s two African-American schools, in 1925."

Smith designed the North Broadwag and Third Avenue schools with identical layouts and facades The only variation was
in the cast stone ornamentation.” The total cost to build the two schools was $182,000.2° Construction began in

“ Johnston, 104,
* Ibid.
¢ Ibid.
? . Johnston, 105.
8 H. Miles Moore, Early History of Leavenworth City and County, {Leavenworth, KS: Sam'l Dodsworth Book Co.), 1906, 201.

® Walter S. Monroe, Rsport of a Survey of the Public Schools of Leavenworth, KS (Kansas State Teachers College of Emporia, Bureau of Education
Measurements: Kansas State Printer), 1915, 23-24.
*° Ibid, 42.
" Ibid, 46.
:2 “School Building Progress,” The Journal of the National Education Association, June 1922, 238.

3 Moore, 32.
' “Electrical Wiring Contract Is Let,” Leavenworth Times, December 7, 1922.
:6 ‘Work on Grade Schools Begun Here Tuesday,” Leavenworth Times, December 6, 1922,

Ibid.
' No additional information is known about the Cleveland Park School. It does not appear on Sanborn Maps, it is not visible on any current aerial or
satelllte images, and a Google search turned up no information about its history or fate.

Christy Davis, National Register nomination form, “Sumner Elementary School,” Topeka, Kansas, 2011.

'°The Third Avenue School is also vacant. It is a contributing resource to the Third Avenue National Register Historic District

2 [bid,



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

December 1922. Gordon Walker Construction Company of Salina, KS was the contractor. The first day of school at
North Broadway School was September 17, 1923; 382 students attended.

The neighborhood elementary program moved out of North Broadway School in 1999. The Leavenworth School District
operated a number of special programs, including an alternative high school, in the building until 2010. After the school
closed, it was sold to the current owner.

Architect®’

Charles Ashley Smith was born in Ohio in 1867. His father was a builder and contractor. The family moved to lowa when
Charles was seven years old. By the time Smith was sixteen, he began working with the architecture firm of Bell and
Hackney in Des Moines. When William Hackney moved his office from lowa to Kansas City in 1887, Smith accompanied
him as a draftsman. Hackney served as the Kansas City Missouri School Board architect from 1887-1889 when he died.
Smith was named as his replacement.

Following Hackney's death, Smith practiced on his own until he became a partner in the firm Smith, Rea, and Lovitt in
1910. The firm designed many noteworthy buildings in Kansas City, including the Kansas City Club, the Pla-Mor
amusement structures, the Firestone Building, Linwood Methodist Church, and Ivanhoe Masonic Temple before the firm
dissolved in 1921.

Smith held the position as Kansas City, Missouri School District architect for nearly five decades, designing some fifty
school buildings for the district prior to his retirement in 1936. In addition to the schools he designed in Kansas City,
Smith is also identified as the designer of education facilities throughout the region including the University of Missouri-
Kansas City, William Jewell Coilege, Westminster College, School of the Ozarks, and Leavenworth, Kansas. Although his
design of school and educational facilities was prolific, he also designed many other building types, including religious,
industrial, commercial, and residential. Smith died at his home on January 10, 1948 at age 81.

CONCLUSION

The North Broadway School retains the character-defining features of a City School, specifically the modern elementary
school version of the City Graded School Property Subtype, as described in the Multiple Property Documentation Form
(MPDF), “Historic Public Schools of Kansas City." Prolific school architect Charles A. Smith designed the building in 1922,
The North Broadway School was built within the period of significance and geographical area of the MPDF. It retains
integrity of location, setting, design, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association, and clearly communicates its
historic function. The building retains all of its Tudor Revival architectural features and its historic interior configuration.
The history of the building and associated property reflect the typical evolution of educational facilities in Kansas from
ward school to grade school to elementary school.

# geveral existing documents reviewed during the preparation of this nomination identify the Leavenworth architecture firm Feth & Feth as the architects
for the North Broadway and Third Avenue Schools. These documents include the KSHS historic inventory form for North Broadway School, the Third
Avenue Historic District National Register Nomination, and the National Register Multiple Property Documentation Form the Designs of Architects
William Pratt Feth and Myron Kauffman Feth in Leavenworth, Kansas, ca. 1895-1942. Primary sources located during the course of research name
Charles A. Smith as the buildings’ architect. These sources include the original architectural drawings; a newspaper article from 1922; and a table of
“School-Building Progress” in The Journal of the National Education Association from June 1922. Research did not locate any primary source
documents confirming that Feth & Feth played any role in the design or construction of the North Broadway or Third Avenue Schools.



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography (Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form.)

“Charles A. Smith Dies.” Kansas City Times, January 11, 1948.

Davis, Christy. National Register nomination form, “Sumner Elementary School.” Topeka, Kansas, 2011.

“Electric Wiring Contract is Let.” Leavenworth Times, December 7, 1922.

Ford, Susan Jezak. “Charles Ashley Smith: Architect 1867-1948." Missouri Valley Special Collections: Biography, Kansas
City Public Library.

http://www.kchistory.org/cdm4/item viewer.php?CISOROOT=/Biographies&CISOPTR=123&CISOBOX=1&REC=
1 (accessed May 6, 2011).

Johnston, J.H. lll. Leavenworth: Beginning to Bicentennial. Leavenworth, KS: self-published, 1978.

Kansas Writers' Project Work Projects Administration State of Kansas, sponsored by Leavenworth Chamber of
Commerce. A Guide fo Leavenworth, Kansas. Leavenworth, KS: The Leavenworth Chronicle, 1940.

Leavenworth Times. September 17, 1923. Microfilm. Leavenworth Public Library.
Monroe, Walter S. Report of a Survey of the Public Schools of Leavenworth, KS. Kansas State Teachers College of

Emporia, Bureau of Education Measurements: Kansas State Printer, 1915. www.books.google.com (accessed
April 28, 2011).

Moore, H. Miles. Early History of Leavenworth City and County. Leavenworth, KS: Sam’l Dodsworth Book Co, 1906.

Nimz, Dale. National Register of Historic Places Multiple Property Documentation Form for The Designs of Architects
William Pratt Feth and Myron Kauffman Feth in Leavenworth, Kansas, ca. 1895-1942. 2007.

Piland, Sherry. “A Kansas City Architect: Charles A. Smith.” Historic Kansas City Foundation Gazette. January/February
1986.

"School Building Progress” Chart. The Journal of the National Education Association. Volume Xl: January-December,
1922. www.books.google.com (accessed May 4, 2011).

Smith, Charles A. Third Avenue School. Architectural Drawings. 1922. Private collection of Duane Denney, Leavenworth,
Kansas.

Spencer, Brenda. National Register of Historic Places Multiple Property Documentation Form for Historic Public Schools
of Kansas. 2005.

“To Begin Building Two New Schools by January Fifth.” Leavenworth Times, December 5, 1922.
“Work on Grade School Begun Here Tuesday.” Leavenworth Times, December 6, 1922.

Whitney, Carrie Westlake. “Charles A. Smith,” Kansas City Missouri: Its History and Its People 1800-1908, Volume II.
Chicago: The S.J. Clarke Publishing Co., 1908.

10



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)
North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF
Name of Property County and State
Previous documentation on file (NPS): Primary location of additional data:
preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67 has been X State Historic Preservation Office
requested) _ Other State agency
previously listed in the National Register ____Federal agency
previously determined eligible by the National Register ~ Local government
designated a National Historic Landmark _University
recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey # X Other
recorded by Historic American Engineering Record # Name of repository: Leavenworth Public Library

recorded by Historic American Landscape Survey #

Historic Resources Survey Number (if assigned): 103-484

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property 1.8 acres
(Do not include previously listed resource acreage.)

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

1 15 334208 4354545 3

Zone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing
2 4

Zone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing

Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the property.)
Lot 109, Day & Macaulay’s Subdivision, Leavenworth, Kansas.

Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundaries were selected. )

The boundary includes the parcel of land historically associated with the property.

11. Form Prepared By

name/titte Elizabeth Rosin, Principal, Kristen Ottesen, Associate

organization Rosin Preservation, LLC date May 2011

street & number 215 West 18" Street, Suite 150 telephone 816-472-4950

city or town Kansas City state MO zip code 64108
e-mail elizabeth@rosinpreservation.com and kristen@rosinpreservation.com

11



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-200 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
e Maps: A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources. Key all
photographs to this map.

¢ Continuation Sheets

e Additional items: (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items.)

Photographs:

Submit clear and descriptive photographs. The size of each image must be 1600x1200 pixels at 300 ppi (pixels per inch)
or larger. Key all photographs to the sketch map.

Name of Property: North Broadway School

City or Vicinity: Leavenworth
County: Leavenworth State: Kansas
Photographer: Brad Finch

Date Photographed: March 2011

Description of Photograph(s) and number:

All digital images labeled as follows: KS_HistPublicSchoolsofKS_Leavenworth County_NorthBroadwaySchool_#.tif
1 of 12. View of the south and east elevations along Broadway Street, view northwest.

2 of 12. East elevation, view west.

3 of 12. South elevation, view north.

4 of 12. West elevation, view east.

5 of 12. North elevation, view south.

6 of 12, Typical entryway and detailing on front (east) elevation, view west.

7 of 12. Typical sidelights/transom at entries, 1%

floor, view northwest.
8 of 12, Typical corridor, 1% floor, view southwest.

9 of 12. Gymnasium/auditorium, view northwest.

10 of 12. Typical classroom.

11 of 12. Typical classroom.

12 of 12. Typical casework/coat closet in classroom.

12



€1

A
«c

@
NOO:
(1]
Altvesn

SWn0

Anni

712 |
|
- T,.,,J:,.,F-
i
») E
f
!
$
a
= dem e i
R -
ol g
—f-
i
S 4 ¢
ST VAR T T g‘
A
depy Ay ojoyd
:SIUSWIND0(Q jeuocippy
ajelg pue Aunon Auadoid jo sweN
44diN
sesue)| JO S|ooYyoS dlgnd dLOISIH
sesuey| ‘Ajlunon Yyuomuaaes |jooyss Aempeoig YUoN
(1021815 sendx3) 8100-+201 'ON GNO 006-01 uuo4 SdN

wuo4 uciiensiboy sedeld SUOISH JO Ja)siBaY [EUOHEN / BOISS 3B [BUOHEN

Jouelu] 8y} Jo juswyedaq SelelS polun



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

Additional Documents:

r'
/

-
)
-

o
o
]
a
=
74
oy

e Glur frovte

L

Tire
an o

e
< Fzy

Third Avenue School: First Floor Plan
(Third Avenue and North Broadway Schools were designed by the same architect and are identical in plan and detail.)

14



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

Additional Documents:

(8

s
frrlt o litrwast o fustion

P e,

»
R 1

'
oatlin oo

ot vl S S

—

e

% DLTAIL & J OPLRINGS -
e
FERTIVE &

higrt hrcoy, M
s

L

Waktbap

-
. : 4 = 0
b, | [fEree———as ¥
= B4l o M,
e v KR
B 3% -
31_).,% k.
! )

——

Third Avenue School: Second Floor Plan
(Third Avenue and North Broadway Schools were designed by the same architect and are identical in plan and detail.)

10



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-300 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

Additional Documents:

Third Avenue School: Sections and Details
(Third Avenue and North Broadway Schools were designed by the same architect and are identical in plan and detail.)

16



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

Additional Documents:

aresibere

Kmaiyee (M0
IR

{
L .
Third Avenue School: Elevations
(Third Avenue and North Broadway Schools were designed by the same architect and are identical in plan and detail,
with the exception of the cast stone ornamentation on the exterior elevations.)




United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

Additional Documents:

S S Sy J LIB J

—

A

[ l;a."@-nm-..,, is
T AEA] Fr
- Lb g
WET - ‘
=L )
e i

;

) o ;v vt tomt
»
]S
~
LS i -

i
:

o = f - 7
s - ) ol d [ - » » '_n'—m
r} Pl - d [ i[ﬂ_‘___a 2 -
- - r w ” -
N » P . [y . - :
g N - " o A'” . o . «
218 - b B rsdem s e ) 2
< p » b} 2 v [3] = E
__]79 i A= ke - |V -oem bk 8 - o1 52#
= & v ) 8
~ %‘l ~ r-4 @ » > \s » r-J L3 ”n
g & ~
<5 Lk
—" W 7% ) — xr ﬁ - . e
.......-?--‘e-z::m..- ““ﬂ&\u. BROADWAY “‘*ﬁ»”‘- --~'m-§«-'-§f@------
-] § £ v & . ot ;
® I\ r—.
3 ’ s Vs s [
—
' '\ ]
i L3 i
g 190 g
S L i =
: v o oo ¥
@ ¥ Gt = - @ N. g 19 ST ;e ¥
bl R : o

-1 = S e .
1924 Sanborn Map. Court'esy of the Kansas City (Missouri) Public Library website.




United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

North Broadway School Leavenworth County, Kansas
Historic Public Schools of Kansas
MPDF

Name of Property County and State

Property Owner:

{Complete this item at the request of the SHPO or FPO.)

name Duane Denny, LD Development, LLC

street & number 773 Seneca

city or town Leavenworth

telephone 913-290-0022
state KS zip code 66048

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a
benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C.460 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of
this form to the Office of Planning and Performance Management. U.S. Dept. of the Interior, 1849 C. Street, NW, Washington, DC.

19



LEAVENWORTH PRESERVATION COMMISSION

Update and Review — Downtown Historic District
418 Cherokee Street

August 2, 2017

PREPARED BY: APPROVED BY:

CY7 =, e

Julie Hurlgy/ City Planner” Padl Kramer, City-Mandager

OWNER & APPLICANT:

Baris Restaurant, LLC
DBA Luigi’s Restaurant

DISCUSSION:

The Leavenworth Preservation Commission heard this item at the January 21, 2015 meeting and
approved a Major Certificate of Appropriateness, and again at the October 7, 2015 meeting and
approved changes from the previously approved plan. The approved revised plans included
installation of new signage, a steel and glass awning, and an aluminum railing.

Since the October 7, 2015 meeting, the owner has installed a railing which does not match the
appearance of what was shown on approved plans, and has applied for a building permit to install an
awning which does not match what was shown on approved plans. Additionally, new signage, as
shown on the approved plans, has not been installed; signage moved from the previous location of the
restaurant is in place. Due to these factors, staff requested that the applicant discuss his plans with
the Preservation Commission prior to issuance of a building permit for the requested awning. The
Preservation Commission considered these changes at the June 7, 2017 meeting and requested that
the owner provide more detailed information.

ACTION/OPTIONS:

¢ Consensus that proposed changes meet approved Certificate of Appropriateness
e Table the items and request further information or revisions from the applicant

ATTACHMENTS

Minutes of June 7, 2017 LPC meeting

Revised renderings submitted by applicant
Approved plans

Application materials for building permit for awning

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




CITY OF LEAVENWORTH PRESERVATION COMMISSION
COMMISSION CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
100 N 5" Street, Leavenworth, Kansas 66048
Wednesday, June 7, 2017 5:00 PM

The Leavenworth Preservation Commission met Wednesday, June 7, 2017. Chairman Ken Bower called the meeting to
order. Other commissioners present were: John Karrasch, Rik Jackson, Stephen Hansen, Debi Denney, and Sherry
Hanson. Mr. Otto was absent. Also present for the meeting were City Planner Julie Hurley and Administrative Assistant
Michelle Baragary.

Chairman Bower noted a quorum was present and called for a motion to accept the minutes from May 3, 2017 as
presented. Mr. Jackson moved to accept the minutes, seconded by Ms. Denney and approved by a vote of 7-0.

OLD BUSINESS:
1. 418 CHEROKEE STREET — BARIS RESTAURANT LLC D/B/A LUIGI’S RESTAURANT
Review plans.
Chairman Bower called for the staff report.

City Planner Julie Hurley stated the Leavenworth Preservation Commission heard this item at the January 21, 2015 and
approved a Major Certificate of Appropriateness, and again at the October 7, 2015 meeting and approved changes from
the previously approved plan. The approved revised plans included installation of new signage, a steel and glass awning,
and an aluminum railing.

Since the October 7, 2015 meeting, the owner has installed a railing which does not match the appearance of what was
shown on approved plans, and has applied for a building permit to install an awning which does not match what was
shown on approved plans. Additionally, new signage, as shown on the approved plans, has not been installed; signage
moved from the previous location of the restaurant is in place. Due to these factors, staff requested that the applicant
discuss his plans with the Preservation Commission prior to issuance of a building permit for the requested awning.

Chairman Bower opened the public hearing.

Andi, representing Baris Restaurant, addressed the board. He stated the plans for the awning are exactly the same as
what was previously presented to the commission with the exception of support poles because he plans to install a 50’
awning. The awning will be stabilized on the fence and the wall of the building. Stated the engineer said the building
cannot support the awning due to the condition of the building. Andi stated his insurance company suggested he
change the design of the fence to prevent a possible lawsuit if a child got stuck in between the bars on the fence.

Andi stated the contractor did not include the curved glass to Luigi’s restaurant entrance because the entrance recedes
into the building; however, the curved glass will still be installed above the bakery.

Mr. Bower asked if there will be exterior lighting. Andi responded there will be exterior lighting on the walls under the
awning. Mr. Bower asked for pictures of what the lighting will look like. Andi did not have pictures but stated the
lighting will go with the design of the building. Mr. Bower was not satisfied with that answer. He stated this has been
an ongoing project and the changes thus far to the building are not what have approved. He would like to see pictures
of what is currently being proposed.

Mr. Bower asked where the supports for the awning will be located. Andi responded there will be three supports
surrounding each window, as shown on sheet Al. Mr. Bower asked if the supports attach to the ground or the wall of
the building. Andi stated there is a metal beam on top of the building. Mr. Bower asked for clarification that the

Leavenworth Preservation Commission Minutes June 7, 2017



supports will not dropped down in front of the window. Andi responded the supports will not go in front of the
windows.

Ms. Hurley stated it is difficult for staff to tell where the supports will be according to the plans submitted by the
applicant. She further pointed out on the documents submitted for the building permit, there was nothing showing the
arched glass over the bakery.

Ms. Hanson stated the curved glass seems a bit modern if the applicant is trying to preserve the historic look of the
building. Andi responded it will not be curved glass because glass is not safe. He provided the commissioners a sample
of the type of material to be used for the curved arch, which is a polycarbonate material.

Ms. Hanson asked for clarification on the type of look Andi is going for as she is having difficulty getting a clear vision on
what he would like to do. Andi stated he is going for a modern Italian cuisine look.

Ms. Hanson asked if the delay with the awning is due to the contractor requiring the support beams. Andi stated the
issue was finding a company that could manufacture a 50’ awning, which is for outside seating. He stated the engineer
said the front of the building is a cinder wall with veneer brick. Andi further stated the awning will be stabilized by the
beams on the front of the building and by three posts outside.

Commissioner’s asked for verification that there will in fact be posts going from the awning to the ground. Andi
responded yes. Mr. Bower asked for the location of the posts. Ms. Hurley stated there appears to be a post on each
end of the building and one post in the middle. Mr. Bower asked if the posts will block the window. Andi responded the
posts will not block the window. Ms. Hurley showed the commissioners a picture of the building, which shows where
the three posts will be located. The post in the middle will go in front of one of the windows. Ms. Hurley stated the
drawings the applicant submitted do not show the relationship to the building. Andi stated one of the posts will go in
front of the window and it will be a 3” post. Ms. Hurley stated the drawings indicated 4” posts. Andi agreed they will be
4” black posts. Ms. Hurley further stated the drawings submitted for the awning permit do not show the curved arch
over the bakery entrance. Andi stated there will be a curved arch over the bakery entrance. Ms. Hurley again stated the
drawings submitted to the city does not show a curved arch over the bakery but does show one over the restaurant;
however, Andi stated earlier there will not be a curved arch over the restaurant.

Ms. Hanson asked why a curved arch is not going above the restaurant to balance everything. Andi stated because there
is six foot entrance to the restaurant so an arched awning is not needed there to protect people from the weather.
Furthermore, it would cost an additional $8,000 to add a curved arch to the restaurant awning. Ms. Hanson stated she
does not believe the look will be appealing with only one curved arch. Andi stated the look would be fine because the
awning covering the seating outside will all be in the same design. He also stated he wants customers to recognize the
bakery is a separate business from the restaurant.

Mr. Karrasch stated from an aesthetics standpoint, having the arch over the bakery will cause the bakery to stand out
more than the restaurant. Mr. Karrasch asked why the applicant would want the bakery to be more predominate than
the restaurant. Andi responded he wants both to be predominating. He further stated his only worry is putting up a
beam over the restaurant entrance, which would be required in order to put up the curved arch.

Ms. Hanson suggested doing something high upper on the building and not use the curved glass altogether. Andi stated
they are putting the beam on the bakery side high upper on the wall to support the 4’ curved awning and this will match
the height of the restaurant entrance.

Mr. Karrasch asked if the engineer can come up with a creative solution on how to get around the H beam on the
restaurant entrance. Andi stated the engineer said the only way to do this is to have a metal frame around the
restaurant entrance which would be attached to the building.

Ms. Hanson asked if the current sign on the building, which is the sign that was on the old building, will be removed.
Andi stated it will be in the near future. Ms. Hanson suggested putting up a new sign in its place and having a sign of the

Leavenworth Preservation Commission Minutes June 7, 2017



same design over the bakery. Andi stated the current sign is on anchors but it lightweight. Andi stated the anchors
caused structural problems with the wall which he has to address.

Mr. Bower asked if the new signage will look like the signage which was originally presented and approved. Andi stated
it will be similar. Mr. Bower asked what is meant by similar.

Ms. Hanson asked if there was a proof the commissioners could look at and asked if there will be two separate signs;
one for the restaurant and one for the bakery. Andi responded there will be two separate signs.

Mr. Bower again asked if the signage will look like the submitted plans. Andi responded they will not.

Mr. Hansen stated it is difficult to visualize what the final design will look like. He asked if it's possible to submit a new
design plan so the commissioners can see what the whole project will look like.

Mr. Bower asked if the applicant, in a short period of time, could present to the city a plan that would show what
everything will look like, to include both signs, the lighting, the awning, the arches, and the posts.

Mr. Bower asked the commissioners if they have any issue with the design of the fence that was installed. No one
objected to the design. However, Mr. Karrasch commented there was a missed opportunity in the fact that this project
has been piecemealed all along. On the fence, one of the center railings is larger than the end so the presumption is
that this is where the post will go for the awning. It's unfortunate the railing was not designed in relationship with the
awning because four posts could have been used and spaced between the windows evenly, rather than having three
posts and having the middle post in front of a window.

Andi stated he change the post placement and put them evenly between the windows versus in front of one of the
windows. Mr. Karrasch stated this would affect the railing design. Andi stated it would not because the posts are just to
stabilize the awning. Mr. Karrasch explained the posts holding the awning are load bearing posts and go into the
ground. Andi stated the engineer and contracted also suggested installing four posts evenly between the windows but
Andi thought it would make the front of the building look too busy. He did state he would change it to four posts if that
is what the commissioners would like. The commissioners agreed it would look nicer with four posts if that can be done.

Mr. Karrasch proposed the item be tabled until the engineers and architects are available.

Mr. Bower agrees this should be tabled. It makes it impossible for the commissioners to do their jobs when the entire
project has been piecemealed together. The commissioners need to see a complete set of plans.

Andi stated the plans presented are exactly what they are going to do. Mr. Bower asked where the lights are on the
plans and the accurate design of the signage.

Andi asked who needs to attend the next meeting. Mr. Karrasch stated the architect and engineer both need to attend
the next meeting.

Mr. Bower stated he would accept the plans if the city engineer approved them. Ms. Hurley stated the drawings
submitted to the city do not show an awning over the bakery. Therefore, as far as the city is concerned, there is no
awning being installed above the bakery door. Andi stated the price includes an awning over the bakery. Ms. Hurley
stated if the intent is to put an awning over the bakery door, then this must be visible on the drawings.

Ms. Hanson asked what color the awning will be. Andi stated the awning will be the polycarbonate material, dark gray
in color.

Mr. Jackson suggested tabling the issue for additional information.

Leavenworth Preservation Commission Minutes June 7, 2017



With no further comments, Chairman Bower closed the public hearing and called for a motion. Mr. Jackson moved to
table the Major Certificate of Appropriateness until a drawing can be presented to answer questions the commissioners

have about the awning, signage, posts, arches, and lighting. Seconded by Ms. Hanson and passed by a unanimous vote
6-0.

Mr. Karrasch stated there is frustration from the applicant’s side with the governing body because he has some great
ideas and a time commitment and there is also some frustration on the commissioner’s side because they are not being
included in the changes and decisions, which is a critical point when doing this type of work in a historical district. Mr.
Karrasch feels the board has been more than accommodating working with the applicant and making modifications to
the guidelines. Mr. Karrasch encourages the applicant to include the board members in the discussions.

Andi stated his frustration has been with the contractors, not with the commissioners. He’s spent two years searching
for a company to manufacture his 50’ awning and finally found a company out of Bonner Springs, KS.

Mr. Bower asked if the bakery is going to be sold. Andi responded the bakery will not be sold. It will be a full scale
bakery but will be a completely separate business with a separate business license than Luigi’s.

Ms. Hanson asked if the color of the building for the bakery and for the restaurant will be the same. Andi stated the
color of each building will be different to distinguish between the two separate businesses.

NEW BUSINESS:

None

OTHER BUSINESS/CORRESPONDENCE
Chairman Brower noted there were six Minor Certificates of Appropriateness.

With no further questions or comments, Chairman Bower called for a motion to adjourn. Mr. Karrasch moved to
adjourn; seconded by Mr. Hansen and passed by a unanimous vote 6-0.

Meeting was adjourned at 5:46 pm.

JH:mb

Leavenworth Preservation Commission Minutes June 7, 2017



___ﬂ_____.________,_*___ i

___
|
?

il _
__*“ w_ﬂ__;__;_ i

|
_____*__

__,____




|
_
_
_m
L

i
g_m
il
I
i,
it
_ﬁ___

i
o

:__; ,T,

i

it

i
Je

L

m_“

i,

_E

__ i

.: KL

A _

1¥
BN
LER

g
E
il

i
|-
m._w___ﬂ i

DI

.-
-

;_a_m_ _m

it
g
w

f _W
|
i

__

i
__m_m__




WA __% |
WHTRYS




G 5 Sr gl i MmER (g wem .m
bt B ) B
&mwﬁwﬁ%mmmﬁmgw
polianEE B R
R mmm@mm@m bl eF
, ; “@4$K?% i 2
M : 1 mm mmmmw mmmmw -
m 8 Rs  Vary nn :
: BRRE N L
b o G
(| i wmmﬁﬁmwﬁﬁﬁw
i 4 {ELiv L HE
- Foo gy e
igapd o
1 o mmmm i Big b
m m mm mm g mm m mmmmm mmm
S RN RERHE
) LR
. i wm%g%WW%w.
: : &ﬁﬁnxwww
: HEE
m L
4 il
ok mm mmmmm mmam
: . i
j LR AR
# FLUIGIS RESTAURANT LS INTERIOR DESIGN|
; _ LEAVENWORTH, KS | Mm%w oA -




Page #1

Luigi's Restaurant

Awnings will be atached to the existing

[n ]

Outer supports will be atached to the existing
rail and supported by the concrete sidewalk

——
e ———— -

%— plates already designed for the structure —N
0 (a]
___nr
11

L

= : X




MIIA Uy

[0S uj doxq ..QW 8

punore Aem ol (|8 .b/1 89 li# SPieM [ pajBuBisep ssejun

T

1.2 -8

[-— eqnL ILE X u¥ X ub

| L SANL b/L X 10L X ub ~. /1 L .

I+|. n n n _ o~

8¢

oV/€ O~ TI |'_ /€ O~ _A| . ssny eqny 86ep L1 X «2 X S

uw0L-6¥

mejA doy. \I 2anl v/t X Ol X o I/

2# obed SN—— wwoag ——



punose Aem ayi Ife /1 ©q jiim Spiem |e pajeuBisep sssjun

11

]
|
|
1l
i
]
1
i
il

04!

soed [rem Bugsisxe 0}

PSPOM 18SND 2/ X ub X ub N

6uigny .p/1 X 0L X ob

N

&0

Ml

Ml
e

N

=) F—

11
\Nm/
% —E S, = = S T—
eqn} ebey 1| X .2 v“,.«/\ln
jtf—

S =
/\Allaao 4
ucddng feopiop A1eA3 1y ISIOP POYOsY

€# ebey

«04=6



punore Aem ay) ife /1 8q |iim Spiom |e pareubisep ssejun

05 v} dosq

{

«8/1 8

|

9GNL 9L/E X ab X o

v/l

edelq jpuche;p efeg (L X .9 X v ——_

v/t

TG ToF K 2|

[T Buiany «b/k X 0L X ob

-

P




Page #5

TYP §
1/4 .§
1/2" X 1 1/2" Bar r-]
=}
1" X 2" X 11gage Tub g
R 116 7/8" @
TP 1/4
— 2" X 2" Truss
e 1/4 - Arched Joist
/ 1/2° Gusset
2" X 2" Support tube 4" X 10" X 1/4" Tube
at every Arched Joist

P\ 4" X 4" X 316" Tube

Unless designated all welds will be 1/4" all the way around



punose Aem aui ||e /1 eq |IIM spjem |je paleubisep ssajun

ogqny . JEX ¥ X b ﬂ

Vil

IleMm 300iq pue xoug

°gnL W/l X 0L X ub

’ / voddng powoly A 4y

SOSSIU} Usamleq 8oeIq
dens .2/ 1 X 94/G

yoddns ssny
SEld o/l X ¥ X b -

ereid [fem Bupsixg -
ssm.'. nz X 4G =

egni ebeo LI 2 X «2

agmeben || 2 Xt
8/L 9 Y

Vil

94 obed




punose Aem ou Jfe ,i/1 8q |Iim SpeMm |fe pejeubisap ssejufn

/ aqnL OL/E X & X b

o~ sycddns ssni eqn) e6eDLL X 2 X u2 ™\

Buiany /1 X 01 X ¥

[/

e

o N 0
I |

N 4R

N

LW 71—

rL\
™A

=

/

1\
/-

\-eceig dens .2/t | X it —

g

uoddns reojpion Atoae Je ae iSIof pPayoly I\

.2 ebed

«0b- 60—



punore Aem ey [je /1 ©q |lim Spjem |fe pajeubisep sssjun

s
-

oqQnL 9L/E X b X ub l/

_—— odeq feucbelpegnl 9 X @

L o De— o o i g 1
] NN —— 11 =1 11 —x 1 =1
m% IL\ / 51~ \ // — \
= e V’l —_—— | V'I _  ———— —_— N’l j——
— \
—uy/€ O~ p—> SISIOP psyoly usamieq saqn) poddng peyosy I\
"ISIOP Peydly OM) jSBj 8y} usamieq padeds Afenba pue pappe sem agn| ucddng
Payoly BNXe ue ‘pue S|yl 1e pepasu S| yibus) Jo ,11 [euolippe ue Jo esnedeg
-0 —-t.m.v. g o

8# ebed




A

Wall Flashing

| 10 mm Standard Twin Wall
Polycarbinate sheets

Mega-lock Aluminum
Base & Cap

End Flashing

Arched Joist

-\l |

a

4" X 10" X 1/4" Tube

[T

4" X 4" X 3/16" Tube

End View

Wall

Page #9

1" Air Gap

- 2" X 2" Truss

—— Existing wall plate

"~~~ 1/2" End gusset to
support truss and tube




